
MINUTES 
 Of the Township of West Milford 

           ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
May 27, 2008 

 Regular Meeting  
 

Robert Brady, Board Chairman, opened the Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board 
of Adjustment at 7:41 p.m.  The Board Secretary read the Legal Notice. 
 
Pledge 

 
The Chairman asked all in attendance to join in the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present:   Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, 

Barry Wieser, Frank Curcio, Robert Brady 
 

Also Present:  Stephen Glatt, Board Attorney, William Drew, Planner, 
Richard McFadden, Board Engineer, and Tonya E. Cubby, 
Board Secretary, Robert Kirkpatrick, Substitute Planner 

 
Absent:  William Lynch, Arthur McQuaid,  

 
The Chairman asked Mr. Wieser and Mr. Curcio to sit in for Mr. Lynch and Mr. 
McQuaid. There is a full Board for this evening with the two alternate members. 
The Chairman explained the procedures for the Board of Adjustment.   
 
Mr. Brady explained that Mr. Robert Kirkpatrick was present for the application of 
Scott Leonescu.  Mr. Drew had recused himself from this matter. 
 
Mr. Brady explained that he didn’t want the meeting to go on without a Planner 
and explained that Mr. Drew was stepping in for the Planning matters.  Mr. Brady 
explained that there were contracts and a letter from the Township Attorney, Fred 
Semrau.  Mr. Brady read the letter from the Township Attorney.  This is for 
temporary Planning services.  Mr. Brady also stated that Mr. Drew, who is 
extremely knowledgeable with regard to the Highlands Act in West Milford, 
provided him with a proposal.  Mr. Brady requested Mr. Drew’s presence for this 
meeting.  Mr. Drew is familiar with the other applications that are on the agenda. 
 
Mr. Brady also explained that there will be the need to have a special meeting to 
interview the additional applicants who sent proposals to the Township for 
Planning Consulting Services.  Mr. Brady said that the Board could choose to 
bring back one of the previous applicants for interviews or perhaps someone who 
wasn’t interviewed.  Mr. Brady feels that the whole Board or perhaps a committee 
could be involved in the initial interviews.  Mr. Brady’s recommendation is for all 
Board Members and alternate Board Members be present for the interviews.   
 
Mr. Brady is also recommending that the Board approve the contract with William 
H. Drew with a term through August 1, 2008.   Mr. Brady asked the Board if they 
had any comments or questions.  A Board Member asked what the hourly rate 
was and Mr. Brady stated that Mr. Drew’s hourly rate according to his proposal is 
$120.00 per hour for Professional Planning Services.  Another Board Member 
wanted to ask a few questions, 1. Have you heard of Pay to Play? Response 
Yes. 2. Do you comply with it? Response Yes I do.  3.  Are you able to separate, 
for your billing, what is to be an escrow charge and what will come out of 
applicant’s fees? Response yes. 4.  Do you have all insurances required as a 
professional?  Response He doesn’t currently but he will have them if the Board 
desires and feels it is necessary.  Mr. Brady asked Mr. Drew if he couldn’t make 
a meeting if there was someone he had in mind to take the meeting in his place 
and Mr. Drew said that he discussed it with Linda Lutz and she was agreeable to 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 2 of 11 

this.  Mr. Brady asked if they decided to enter into a yearly contract would that 
still be the case and the response was yes.  Mr. Brady asked if there were any 
more questions of Mr. Drew.   
 
Mr. Hannan asked the hourly rate of the person that the Council hired and the 
secretary replied $142.00 per hour.   
 
Mr. Brady asked if anyone wanted to make a motion. 
 
MOTION by Frank Hannan to retain Mr. Drew during the interim period while 
interviewing for consultants at an hourly rate of $120.00 per hour, not to exceed 
$3,000.00 and any other stipulation with regard to Township Pay to Play 
Ordinances or any other stipulations that were in the letter from Mr. Semrau.   
 
Mr. Brady said before the second was made that the Board needed to vote for 
the time period.  Mr. Hannan said that it would be for the time period ending 
August 1, 2008. 
 
SECOND by Ada Erik 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 

YES: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, 
Barry Wieser, Frank Curcio, Robert Brady  

NO: none 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr. Drew for coming and said the Resolution will be 
available.  Mr. Jurkovic said the funds have not been certified as of yet and 
wanted Mr. Drew to know that, if he was working for the Board this evening. 
 
Mr. Glatt wanted to say a few things and apologized to any applicants that are 
present.  Mr. Glatt referred to certain statements that have been in the 
newspaper regarding his contract with the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  The 
statements were made at a Council meeting a few weeks before and also certain 
statements that were in the press.  Mr. Glatt said that the statements were 
inappropriate without any type of investigation, research, and discussion, 
whatsoever.  The statements relate to the fact that he was accused that he may 
be double dipping and the statements were made at a Council meeting, by 
members of the Council.  There were also statements made that pressure should 
be put on this Board to do something about his contract.  Mr. Glatt also said that 
what he gets paid is public record.  He gets paid $180.00 per hour for the 
preparation of resolutions, which comes out of the escrow of applicants and that 
is money earned outside of this meeting.  He also get paid $180.00 per hour if 
there is litigation and he is representing the Board or if he is doing research for 
the Board.   
 
The other fee is $800.00 per meeting, which is a flat fee.  He doesn’t have any 
problem with other people’s thoughts regarding the amount of money he is paid 
per meeting.  The point being that he has been practicing law for 38 years.  
Another attorney for another Board in West Milford was still in college when he 
was the attorney for the Board.  He has been the attorney for the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment for 20 years.  He gets $40.00 more than the other two attorneys and 
has no question that he is more than worth the money.  This Board has had 
minimal litigation over the years and he doesn’t think he has submitted any 
vouchers of any import in the last 10 years other than a resolution or his monthly 
fee.  His hourly rate may be high but he doesn’t charge the applicant.  Mr. Glatt 
addressed a comment that coincidentally it always takes Mr. Glatt an hour to do 
the resolution.  He errs on the part of the public.  He never increases his bill if 
anything he takes less, he came from a regular working family.  He keeps his 
fees at the minimum. 
 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 3 of 11 

Mr. Glatt hoped that he would never be accused of double dipping or suggesting 
that he may be double dipping.  This affects his reputation and his livelihood.  He 
addressed comments again regarding pressure being placed on this Board, 
statements made by 1 or 2 members of the Town Council and that they should 
be careful this is the contractual right of this Board and he said that this is an 
autonomous Board.  It should be made clear that he hopes a public apology is 
made at the Council Meeting and a retraction placed in the paper he will accept 
an apology if done without malice.  If not forthcoming then we will see what future 
will bring.   
 
The Board Attorney for 20 years if this Board is dissatisfied with what he does or 
gets paid that these are the gentlemen he answers to and no member of that 
Council from Mayor down will be able to intimidate him.  He is not part of their 
politics, he’s been here, done his work and he has kept a low profile all of these 
years and the Board has never spent one half of their budget that is allotted for 
him.  The Town hasn’t paid him more than $9,500.00.  He has never, like other 
attorneys come back to this Board and asked for special appropriation because 
he has eaten it up.  When he doesn’t bill the applicant that means that the 
applicant gets his escrows back, it goes back to the public.  He received a phone 
call relating to this a few weeks ago, while out, and he was outraged.  To the 
press covering the meeting, anyone can go the Passaic County Courthouse and 
find out about his reputation.   
 
Ms. Erik said Steve has been the only choice when other choices were put 
before them because of the fact that he does not bill for everything.  He has 
helped out in everything that they do and she also wants the apology from the 
people on the Council who said what was said.  Also, the Board stands behind 
him. 
 
Mr. Jurkovic was concerned about what was said about Mr. Glatt and his 
contract.  He has worked with Mr. Glatt on the Board for 10 years and finds him 
to be of impeccable integrity and compared to other attorneys does under bill.  
Mr. Jurkovic pulled all of Mr. Glatt’s billing from January through April.  He 
submitted four invoices for $800.00, flat rate per meeting.  He submitted an 
additional 5 invoices for preparation of Resolutions, which is billed hourly against 
the applicant’s escrow.  The total cost for the four months is $4,100.00, which is 
an average cost of $1,025.00 per meeting.  There were 11 applications being 
processed during the same timeframe Mr. Glatt’s average is $373.00 per 
application.  Over 12 month’s the projected billing is $12,300.00 per year, which 
is consistent with the previous 2 years.  Taking the hourly rate and applying it to 
the amount paid, he averages 6 hours per meeting and 2 hours per application.   
 
Mr. Jurkovic made a comparison of the Planning Board Attorney and Zoning 
Board of Adjustment Attorney’s billing.  He also pulled the Planning Board 
invoices for the same time and the total billing without litigation invoices is 
$20,609.00 over 5 times the amount Mr. Glatt charged for similar services. The 
average cost per meeting for the 8 meetings of the Planning Board is $2,576.00 
and Mr. Glatt’s average is $1,025.00.  The average cost for an application before 
the Planning Board $1,374.00 compared to Mr. Glatt’s $373.00.  Based upon the 
Planning Board Attorney’s hourly rate of $140.00 that would mean the average 
hours he spends on a meeting are 18 compared to 6. The average hours per 
application are 10 compared to Mr. Glatt’s 2.  Hourly rates for attorneys can be 
misleading, because only focusing on the hourly rate, you have no idea what you 
are paying. Mr. Jurkovic said it seems that Mr. Glatt can accomplish a task in 1/3 
the time of another attorney.  He can process applications in 1/5 the time it takes 
for our sister board.  He thinks it’s worth an extra $40.00 an hour.  He can’t think 
of a better attorney for this Board than Mr. Glatt. Mr. Jurkovic hopes that 
everyone understands how the Board feels about Mr. Glatt.  We are within our 
rights to employ the attorney that we want and have met our fiduciary 
responsibilities.   
 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 4 of 11 

Mr. Brady asked if anyone else would like to add anything.  Mr. Brady apologized 
to the public but because of the newspaper this was needed.  He is in his 17th 
year and Mr. Glatt has been the attorney all that time.  Not one time has Mr. Glatt 
refused an applicant free legal advice at the dais to give the applicant the best 
opportunity for them to make their best presentation.  He finds it abhorrent that 
any member of the community would make remarks without some type of 
investigation.  Mr. Glatt’s record stands for itself, we have the lowest litigation 
rate because we do things right the first time.  Mr. Hannan said that Mr. Glatt has 
his confidence and the confidence of the Board.  Mr. Brady apologized to the 
public but these points had to be made.   
 
MEMORIALIZATIONS 
 
RESOLUTION 8-2008 
APPROVAL OF 2007 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
Motion to memorialize the resolution. 
Second Ada Erik 
Roll Call Vote: 
  

Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Barry Wieser, Frank Curcio, 
Robert Brady 

 No: None 
 
SCOTT LEONESCU 
Use Variance No. 0740-0789 
187 Larue Road 
Block 15401; Lot 51; R4 Zone 
 
Mr. Leonescu is not present at the meeting nor was his attorney.  Mr. Glatt said he has 
not heard from Mr Masessa, his attorney.  Mr. Brady said that the Board could either 
carry this or dismiss the matter without prejudice.  Mr. Brady said dismissing without 
prejudice gives the applicant the opportunity to bring it back before the Board,  
postponing it would mean moving it back to June.  The extension date is August 4, 2008 
so there is time.  Mr. Glatt said that he told Mr. Masessa that he might have told Mr. 
Massessa that he would have to re-notice.  Mr. Brady said that it is the Board’s policy 
that if the applicant couldn’t be present then a representative of the applicant should be 
present and if they did not show the application is then dismissed.   
 
Motion by Ada Erik to dismiss the application without prejudice. 
Second by Francis Hannan 
 
Mr. Brady said that the motion might not be complete, that there is a question of 
whether to charge application fees if reapplying.  Mr. Glatt said to consider re-listing the 
application or we could consider amending the application and any bills of Mr. 
Kirkpatrick’s should be brought current.  Mr. Kirkpatrick said the report has not changed 
since January, that the applicant needs to convince the Board that this is justified and 
anything else from his report in January.  He had no other expenses other than his trip 
up here tonight.   
 
Ada Erik amended the motion for all escrows to be up to date so that the special 
planner could be paid for any expenses for this application before re-listing the 
application. Also no additional application fees are to be charged if the matter was 
brought before this Board again.  It will need to be reapplied for and re-noticed. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 

Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, Frank Curcio, 
Barry Wieser, Robert Brady 

 No: none 
 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 5 of 11 

Chairman Brady asked for Mr. Drew to return to the dais for the next application. 
 
CARRIED APPLICATIONS 
 
RUSSELL CURVING     
Bulk Variance #0830-0798 
Block 9001; Lot 17 
1494 Macopin Road, R2 Zone 
 

 

Philip Fenimore, Owner, Philip Fenimore Design Strategies, 23 Michelle Court, North 
Haledon, NJ, Architect, to answer any questions, Mr. Moraski, Project Manager, 
Kessner Associates, Civil Engineer, not licensed but in the field for 23 years.  Mr. 
Curving called Mr. Fenimore to explain the project for him. 
 
Mr. Fenimore said that the variances are different than originally applied for.  It is still a 
detached garage as originally proposed.  The original variance was for 11 feet side yard 
where 30 feet is required.  The new plan shows 15.31 feet requested where 30 feet is 
required. The second variance requested was for the area of the garage not to exceed 
1500 square feet; his original proposal was for 1, 862 square feet.  They have scaled 
back the garage for 1,638.75 square feet.  He is prepared to address any concerns that 
the Board might have or had at last month’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Fenimore was asked to provide his credentials. He is Philip Fenimore, Architect, 
New Jersey, Owner & Operator, Philip Fenimore Design Strategies, North Haledon, 
numerous representations in surrounding areas not West Milford focusing on the design 
of residential construction.  New York Institute of Technology, School of Architecture, 
Licensed in New Jersey.  They have testified in Wayne and North Haledon.  Mr. Brady 
accepted the credentials of this Professional.   
 
The structure will be 1,638.75 square feet and will be used for housing of antiques.  He 
owns 6 antique vehicles he is requesting the detached structure for housing of these 
vehicles not to work on them.  He now has a detached garage that houses a few 
vehicles.  Currently, the additional vehicles are at families and friends.  The size of the 
garage that is being proposed is the minimum size that could house these vehicles.  It is 
considered larger than the normal size garage.  The cars are larger since they are 
antiques.  Mr. Fenimore addressed the other garage because of the Board’s concerns 
from the previous meeting. There will be 3 structures on the property.  The new 
proposed drawing of Stephen Kessner Associates is an open breezeway to connect the 
existing detached garage to the existing main dwelling.  Currently, the existing garage 
measures 48.48 feet off of Macopin Road.  The R-2 Zone requires 75 foot front yard 
setback.  The breezeway being proposed will be in line with the garage and the front 
porch with the same setback of 48.48 feet.  As per Mr. McFadden’s memo of tonight, 
the additional variance for the breezeway was to be requested at the meeting.  A Board 
Member confirmed that by doing this the original garage will become part of the main 
structure, so there will only be one accessory structure on the property. Mr. Fenimore 
feels that the changes as stated this evening are the best way to address any 
comments or concerns from the Board.  The other comments of the Engineer will be 
addressed or corrected and the applicant had no problem with any changes.   
 
Mr. Brady asked if there were any other questions of this expert.  There weren’t any.  
Mr. Brady asked Mr. Curving to bring up his next witness.  He is Mr. Ray Moraski from 
Kessner Associates.  The Board Attorney asked for his credentials. He has a BA from 
the University of Pennsylvania in Economics and Mathematics and additional course 
work at New Jersey Institute of Technology in Civil Engineering and Land Surveying.  
He has been doing work in Civil Engineering and Land Surveying field for about 23 
years and in residential and commercial development, he has testified at numerous 
boards, he is not licensed.  Mr. Glatt said that even though he is not licensed, his 
testimony shouldn’t be discounted, and the Board should listen to it and give it the 
weight appropriate based upon his experience.  The Chairman accepted the credentials 
of this professional.   



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 6 of 11 

 
Mr. Kessner said that the property is in the R-2 zone and the issues before the Board 
are preexisting conditions, such as lot requirements, 2 acres are required, the existing 
lot is .7753 acres.  Minimum lot frontage required is 200 feet, 197.06 feet is existing, 
minimum width 200 feet, they comply with 208.40, the lot depth required is 225, 161.50 
exists 40 feet is required for side yard and 66.93 feet is existing. 75 feet for front yard is 
required and 51.46 feet exists, the minimum rear yard is 75 feet and 73.11 feet is 
preexisting.  Proposed addition is showing 67.31 feet for the rear yard.  Minimum 
distance from existing building required is 30 feet and proposed is 15.31 feet. Minimum 
distance to rear line is 30 feet required and proposed is 134.71 feet. Building coverage 
is 10% and they are at 9.5%. They are in compliance for accessory building maximum, 
maximum square footage is 1500 square feet and they are requesting 1638.75 square 
feet.  The building height and structure comply with the requirements.  In addition, they 
are addressing the impervious area and proposing a seepage pit to capture any runoff 
so it won’t impact the neighboring property. The Engineer’s sight distance comment will 
be addressed and they will comply with that, it is roughly 120 feet from the intersection 
and they anticipate when going in the other direction it will more than exceed the 150 
feet as required.  Mr. Kessner asked the Board if they had any questions for him.  Mr. 
Hannan confirmed with the applicant that they were asking for 3 variances, one for the 
breezeway an accessory building, 15.31 sideline setback and the total square footage 
of the garage. Mr. Jurkovic asked if the 1638.75 square feet for the garage exceeds the 
maximum of 3% it was figured to be 4.8%.  The lot coverage of the accessory building is 
still in excess of what is allowed.  By attaching the original garage to the main structure, 
they have not exceeded the overall lot coverage maximum.  Mr. McFadden pointed out 
that to achieve sight distance on Vreeland Road that brush should be cleared up, they 
were in agreement.  Mr. Moraski said that the 5% slope on the driveway will be 
complied with by lowering the garage floor about 6 inches.  Mr. Brady asked if there 
were any other comments or questions by Board Members.  Mr. Brady opened the 
meeting to the public. 
 
Since there was no one Ada Erik moved to close the public portion. 
Gian Severini Second 
All in favor to close public portion 
 
The Chairman asked if there were any other questions of Board Members. 
 
Motion by Francis Hannan to approve the three bulk variances, the applicant proved 
that a breezeway will aesthetically improve the property and also the existing setback 
lines, also the sidelines of accessory building and the building maximum because total 
coverage doesn’t exceed what is allowable by ordinance.  The applicant has agreed to 
the Township Engineer’s May 27, 2008 memo with an addition to the plan regarding 
clearing of the brush for sight distance.   
Second by Ada Erik 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Barry Wieser, Frank Curcio, 
and Robert Brady  

 No: none 
 
Mr. Brady told Mr. Curving that he had his approval and hopefully his resolution would 
be available for the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Brady asked for a motion to take a 10 minute break.   
Motion by Ada Erik 
Second by Gian Severini 
All in favor to take a break. 
 
Back in session. 
 

 
 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 7 of 11 

NEW APPLICATIONS 
ILAN WAISBROD 
Bulk Variance #0730-0794   
Block 11101; Lot 29, R-4 zone 
450 Snake Den Rd. 
 
John Barbarula, Esq. is representing Mr. Waisbrod.  Mr. Waisbrod and Claude Ballester 
are at the meeting to testify on Mr. Waisbrod’s behalf.  Mr. Glatt swore in Mr. Waisbrod 
and Claude Ballester, Licensed Professional Engineer and Planner 1811 Union Valley 
Road.  Mr. Waisbrod lives on Garden Court in Tenafly, NJ.  Mr. Barbarula went through 
Mr. Ballester’s credentials and he was accepted as a professional.  BS from Rutgers 
University and has appeared before this Board many times.   
 
Mr. Barbarula stated that he has known Mr. Glatt for 31 years and he substituted for his 
partner and he was requested because of his expertise. 
 
Regarding the matter before the Board, this building is already built there are 
outstanding violations that were corrected.  All building permits have been satisfied, the 
summons issued with regard to this applicant have to do with Zoning issues which will 
be addressed after the matter before the Board.  Mr. Barbarula said that they were there 
to try to correct and get various approvals for the property.  Mr. Brady asked if Mr. 
Waisbrod was the owner.  Mr. Barbarula said yes and the Judge was holding the 
summons in abeyance and Mr. Barbarula needs to report back to the Judge the findings 
of this meeting.  Mr. Jurkovic asked for the background information.  Mr. Barbarula said 
the building was built without permits. Summonses were issued and there was a notice 
to abate.  Mr. Glatt asked if his client was going to testify to this and Mr. Barbarula said 
yes he giving him the procedural background.  Based on the issues he retained Mr. 
Barbarula’s services.  Mr. Barbarula explained that he told his client that in order to 
correct that applications needed to be filed.  He is representing him for this matter and 
Municipal Court as well.  This is a corrective action. All permits have been obtained and 
corrected other than Zoning and been inspected and signed off by various departments. 
 
Mr. Waisbrod was brought forward by Mr. Barbarula, he purchased the property about 3 
years ago.  The building in question was built about 2 years ago.  Mr. Barbarula asked if  
all outstanding violations such as electrical and structural have been inspected and 
signed off by Building Department, correct?  Mr. Waisbrod said yes.  Mr. Barbarula 
stated that no other construction in the past two years other than this, correct? and he 
said yes.  Mr. Barbarula asked if the barn already existed and he said yes.  The dwelling 
was built about 30 years ago.  There is a shed that already existed when purchased.  
Mr. Glatt asked about the site which was in question.  The sunroom is to the right of the 
building in the northern direction. The deck around the sunroom was built at the same 
time.  Mr. Waisbrod is an Interior Designer by trade in Manhattan.  He doesn’t work in 
construction.  Mr. Glatt asked if any inquiries were made by Mr. Waisbrod to see what 
he could do and he said no, he has 21 acres and it is large and he wanted to build a 
library to get away from the kids and study or read.  He didn’t think he needed the 
permits because of the size of the property.  Mr. Glatt asked if it was intentionally built 
this way.  Mr. Barbarula said he didn’t know but it was a mistake.   
 
Mr. Ballester was asked if he prepared the plans and he said yes.  The house was built 
in 1978 based on septic permits.  Mr. Ballester was involved in the subdivision of the 
property a long time ago.  The lots are flag lots that surround this property.  Mr. 
Barbarula asked if there might have been different zoning then and Mr. Ballester said 
there may have.  There are no properties within 200 feet of the sunroom.  There are 
preexisting variances.  There is a barn that is 16.2 feet off property line and a shed 28 
feet off property line.  The front yard variances are also preexisting.  The house is at 
85.9 feet and the structure in question is basically in line with the existing structure.  The 
setback is 79.1 feet due to angle of the road.  It gets less as you go south.  The distance 
from the sideline and distance from building to building are part of the requested 
variances.  There should be 20 feet between buildings and there is 13.3 with the new 
structure.  No residential properties near the sunroom, Mr. Ballester doesn’t feel anyone 
one could see it except maybe winter.  Mr. Barbarula asked if it was a densely 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 8 of 11 

populated area of the Township, Mr. Ballester said the lots were 4 to 10 acres, mostly 
flag lots.  Snake Den Road is unimproved in this section.  The houses are set back from 
one another.  The maximum square footage of an accessory building is 1500 square 
feet.  The percentage of the building coverage for all of the buildings for the 21 acres is 
less than 1/10 of a percent. Mr. Ballester said the square footage exceeds what is 
allowable for the code.   Mr. Barbarula asked if there was any negative impact and Mr. 
Ballester said no that it is in line with the current house.  It is not in the front yard, it is in 
line with the house.  Mr. Barbarula asked if it had negative aesthetic impact and Mr. 
Ballester said not to his knowledge.  Mr. Barbarula asked about the table for the 
accessory structure and pointed out that they could do one thing to eliminate variances.  
Mr. Ballester mentioned a breezeway and making it part of the existing structure, 
reducing 2 of the variances for the accessory building.  The variance for the side yard 
would increase however they would lose 2 variances.  Mr. Ballester said from a 
Planning standpoint and aesthetically it would look better.  Mr. Barbarula confirmed with 
Mr. Waisbrod that this was discussed before the meeting.  There is a doorway in front of 
the sunroom already.  Mr. Waisbrod was in agreement with the plan.  This would 
remove the issue of the 1500 square foot accessory building since it would be 
connected to the main house.  The side yard distance is 48.1 feet they would be 
reducing that to 24.5 feet. The front yard setback will not change. 
 
Mr. Brady asked Mr. Ballester about the map and about a shallow pool that the structure 
was built over.  Mr. Ballester said to ask the owner.  The house is built on stilts over a 
reflection pond.  Mr. Brady pointed out that since it was on stilts there should be some 
engineering involved.  Mr. Barbarula again said that everyone from the town, Mr. 
Wagner, and Tim Ligus all approved it.  There were no copies of the approvals 
available.  Mr. Glatt pointed out that if approved the conditions would consist of 
satisfying everyone with regard to the approvals.  The architectural drawings were 
discussed.  Plans were revised for the Building Department.  The Court appearance is 
June 26, 2008.  Mr. Glatt said a decision needs to be made.  Mr. Barbarula said they 
were amending their application for a breezeway, sideline and front yard.  Mr. Brady 
said that any approvals will be based upon attaching to the house and also Engineering 
and any other approvals as might be needed. The Code will be followed.  Mr. Glatt said 
it should be understood that if granted they will get permits for breezeway and must 
meet any conditions for new construction and previous construction, Mr. Barbarula 
again said they had all approvals for the initial construction.  Mr. Brady asked if there 
were any questions of Board Members and Mr. Jurkovic said his address is Tenafly and 
Mr. Waisbrod said it is a summerhouse for his own use.   
 
Mr. Drew wanted to ask a few questions he wants to know if it was a C1 or C2 variance 
and the rational.  It is a self-imposed hardship so the hardship of C1 cannot be used.  A 
side yard bulk variance, a front yard variance to keep in line with the structure.  There is 
additional encroachment for the front yard.  They are correcting a violation.  Mr. Brady 
asked if there were questions and then opened it to the public. 
 
Motion by Ada Erik to close public portion 
Second by Francis Hannan 
All in favor to close public portion. 
 
Mr. Barbarula made his closing statement, reiterating what was previously stated.  Front 
yard setback, side yard setback. 
 
Mr. Brady asked if there was any discussion from Board Members.  This is not the 
normal application for this Board to decide.  Mr. Jukovic said that if they came forward 
before it was built it would not be a problematic application.  New Jersey has different 
laws for permits with regard to going through the Township.  Mr. Jurkovic doesn’t see 
any benefit in tearing it down and moving it. 
 
Motion by Daniel Jurkcovic to approve the variances.  In the future make sure you 
check before any construction is done. 
Second by Ada Erik 
 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 9 of 11 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, Barry 

Wieser, Frank Curcio and Robert Brady 
  No: none 
Need amended site plans and new plans for variance, amend building permits.  They go 
to Court June 26, 2008. 
 

SCOTT R. FLAMMER      
Bulk Variance #0730-0796   
Block 5611; Lot 4, LR Zone 
99 Center Street 
 
Scott R. Flammer was sworn in, he lives at 99 Center Street. Mr. Brady explained what 
Mr. Flammer needed to prove.  Mr. Flammer said no hardship just a 2 car garage for his 
personal use.  Mr. Glatt explained that he needed to explain his property and answer a 
few questions.  There is an existing in-ground pool.  The garage will be detached in the 
rear portion of the property.  It will be 30 X 30 and exceeds lot coverage for an 
accessory building.  It would be 4.5% instead of 3%.  His combined structures won’t be 
in excess of the 10 % for 2 cars. Mr. Brady asked if there would be electric and he said 
no, no plumbing nothing above 1 door 2 car garage.  Mr. Brady asked if any 
surrounding property could be purchased. He said that there wasn’t.  There are houses 
on either side of his house.  He had a soil fill permit from the Planning Board.  This is a 
thru lot, which is a fire lane his driveway will come out to Center Street not the fire lane.  
Mr. McFadden’s memo was brought to his attention.  He had no problem with correcting 
the items on the memo.  The drywell tanks are already in the ground, there is an issue 
with the grading.  The Board Members are discussing the contours with regard to the 
drywell.  Mr. Flammer produced the Planning Board Plan.  Mr. Flammer feels that the 
grading could solve the problem.  Mr. McFadden was wondering about the steepness in 
the garage.  Drywell is in rear corner no drainage and trapped water.  Mr. Flammer said 
minimal grading.  Mr. Glatt said Mr. Flammer will need to satisfy the engineer and he 
agreed.   There was some discussion regarding his Planning Board approval for the soil 
fill permit. Mr. Drew said this has been resolved.  Driveway in, grass planted.  Mr. 
Jurkovic  said that any approval from the Board is conditional upon Mr. McFadden’s 
requests. 
 
Mr. Brady asked if there were any questions of Board Members.  This is a prefab 
garage. Exhibit A-1 brochure with dimensions of the garage.  Outside it will be 26 feet 
tall, the ceiling will be 10 feet inside, no sheetrock, no stairs.  Variance height is shown 
on the plans.  There is not a picture of the garage.  The dead space above the ceiling is 
causing a discussion.  Mr. Brady confirmed that the driveway would be gravel. Mr. 
Hannan asked if Mr. Flammer feels that by the height being so tall that perhaps that way 
the company is able to have more uses to sell the garage.  Mr. Brady said that Mr. Drew 
told him that there is not a height restriction in the LR zone. 35 feet maximum limitation.  
Mr. Flammer feels it will be awkward.  Mr. Brady asked if there were any questions and 
then opened it to the public. 
 
Motion by Ada Erik to close public portion 
Second by Gian Severini 
All in favor to close public portion 
 
Motion by Francis Hannan to approve the bulk variance. It is under the maximum 10% 
total coverage, subject to Engineer’s May 27, 2008 memo. 
Second by Ada Erik 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 

Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, Barry Wieser, 
Frank Curcio and Robert Brady 

No: none 
 
Hopefully his Resolution will be available for the next meeting. The resolution will be 
mailed when available. 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 10 of 11 

VINCENT LANZA  
(LOOKOVER DRIVE) 
Bulk Variance #0530-0717  
Block 206; Lot 14.02 

Resolution 21-2006 Bulk Variance Approval 

Resolution 22-2006 with Di Minimis exception 
 
Request to amend Condition #2Aof Resolution 21-2006. 
 
Mr. Lanza was not at the meeting. There was no one left.  Mr. Brady asked for a motion 
for a carry or a dismissal. 
 
Motion by Francis Hannan to carry the application. 
Second  by Gian Severini 
 
Mr. Lanza is always accommodating and that is why we should carry this. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes: Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, Barry Wieser, 
Frank Curcio  

No: Robert Brady 
 
Approval of April 22, 2008 minutes 
 
Motion by Ada Erik 
Second by Daniel Jurkovic 
On a voice vote, all were in favor. 
Opposed: none 
 
COMMUNICATIONS-Acknowledged receipt. 
 
Motion by Francis Hannan to form a committee of 3 to look through the applications for 
the Planner.  The committee will consist of Robert Brady, Ada Erik and Daniel Jurkovic. 
Second by Ada Erik. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:  Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, Gian Severini, Barry Wieser, 
Frank Curcio and Robert Brady 

 
Mr. Glatt pointed out that Mr. Drew will be considered as well. 
 
Mr. Jurkovic said that a special meeting date should be decided for the Planner 
interviews.  Mr. Hannan said a time limit for presentations should be established.  Mr. 
Glatt doesn’t feel that he will need to be present.  The special meeting will be decided 
after the committee meets.  Mr. Glatt also suggested that either before or after other 
meeting.  Mr. Jurkovic said after reading though proposals some might not be worthy of 
an interview.  Mr. Hannan pointed out that it is 3 members not a quorum for the 
committee.  Mr. Brady said he would get the proposals the Township received.  
Someone asked if we needed an RFP, Mr. Drew feels that the respondents to the 
Township RFP should be sufficient.  Mr. Glatt agreed.  Mr. Brady said he will get all first 
and then contact all. 
 
Mr. Jukovic brought up the Email policy that was before the Township Council.  Mr. 
Glatt said that if their emails were on a list then applicants could contact them and 
express opinions.  Ms. Erik declined while attending that meeting.  Mr. Hannan said a 
Resolution saying no one on the Board will be permitted to have a public email address. 
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Ada Erik 
Second by Daniel Jurkovic 



Township of West Milford       

Zoning Board of Adjustment    

Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 27, 2008 

Page 11 of 11 

All in favor to adjourn the meeting 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:28p.m. 
. 
 
Adopted:  May 27, 2008 
        
         
 
      Respectfully submitted by, 
 
      _____________________ 
      Denyse L. Todd, Secretary 
      Zoning Board of Adjustment 


